
 
 
 

TONGANOXIE PLANNING COMMISSION  
Agenda 

August 1, 2019 
7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers 
321 S. Delaware St. 

 
*Note – This meeting may be transmitted via Facebook Live on the City of Tonganoxie page 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Planning Commission Meeting 

 
1. APPROVAL OF PC MINUTES – May 2, 2019 

 
2. OPEN AGENDA – In order to speak during open agenda, you must sign in before the 

meeting. Please give your name and address to the City Clerk or designee. Comments 
will be limited to 3 minutes. Please wait to be recognized by the Chair and before 
speaking state your name and address for the record.  
 

3. NEW BUSINESS  
a) Public Hearing – Preliminary Plat – Saunders Estates – Submitted by Southpark 

Development & Jack Willis 
b) Review Final Plat–Saunders Estates – Submitted by Southpark Development & 

Jack Willis 
c) Consideration of Planning Commissioner Applications 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS 

 
5. GENERAL INFORMATION 

a) Home Builders Residential Statistics- April, May and June 2019 
 

      6.  ADJOURN 
 



 

Minutes - Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2019 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

• Vice Chairman Gee opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
• Roll Call: Planning Commissioners present were Monica Gee, Jacob Dale, and Kevin Harris. Ms. 

Henson, Ms. Gabel, Mr. Morgan and Mr. Stoltenberg were absent. City Manager George 
Brajkovic, Planning Clerk Melanie Tweedy, Assistant City Manager Dan Porter and City Planner 
Chris Brewster with Gould Evans were also in attendance.   

 
1. OPEN AGENDA – In order to speak during open agenda, you must sign in before the 

meeting. Please give your name and address to the City Clerk or designee. Comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Please wait to be recognized by the Chair and before 
speaking state your name and address for the record.  
 

• Kay Soetaert, 124 W 1st Street, addressed the Planning Commission on the subject of the rezone 
of 704 E 4th Street in the agenda. As an applicant for the rezone, Ms. Soetaert explained the 
reasoning herself and the other owners felt rezoning was a logical idea.  

• Jeff Hooper, 804 E Main Street, addressed the planning commission with questions regarding the 
rezone and terminology surround the Historic Business District. Mr. Brewster explained that 
rezoning to Historic Business District did not classify the lot as a historic site, but was rather only 
the name of the zoning district.  

• No other members of the public addressed the Planning Commission.  
• Vice Chairman Gee closed the open agenda portion of the meeting.  

 
Commissioner Crystal Henson arrived at 7:10 PM. 
 
• Ms. Soetaert briefly explained the reasoning for the rezone application from the owners to Ms. 

Henson. 
 

2. NEW BUSINESS  
• Public Hearing – Rezone Application – “I-LT” (Light Industrial) to “HBD” (Historic 

Business District) at 704 E 4th Street. 
• Mr. Brewster delivered a presentation on the item. He explained that based on the future land 

use study, the four corners of 4th Street and Main Street should all eventually be zoned as “HBD.” 
704 E 4th Street is the last corner to be rezoned. He explained that “I-LT” would not allow for a lot 
of future development while “HBD” will allow for more options with Development. Mr. Brewster 
noted that that staff would recommend approval of the rezone application. He also noted that 
council will hear this rezone before being finalized and that any development of the lot would 
require a site plan, which would come to the Planning Commission for approval.  



 

Minutes - Page 2 of 3 

 

• Ms. Henson asked what the biggest difference between “I-LT” and “HBD”. 
• Mr. Brewster explained that the largest difference was the required set backs. 
• No further comments or questions from the Planning Commission.  

o Mr. Dale made a motion to approve the rezone application, subject to the following staff 
conditions: 

1. Future development on the site shall require site plan review by the Planning Commission as is 
required for new buildings in the HBD District. 
 
2. The standards of the HBD District shall be supplemented with the development and design 
criteria in the Downtown Mix land use category and/or Downtown / Central Business District 
Design Guidelines to ensure the development serves the “downtown gateway” principles, and is 
compatible with the scale, patterns and design of other buildings in the HBD district. 
 
o Mr. Harris seconded the motion.  
o Roll Call Vote – All ayes. Motion carried.  

 
City Council will consider the rezone application for 704 E 4th Street at the regular meeting on May 

20th at 7PM in the Council Chambers, located at 321 S Delaware St.  
 

3. APPROVAL OF PC MINUTES –April 4, 2019 
o Vice Chairman Gee requested to revisit the approval of the Planning Commission meeting 

minutes from April 4th as more commission members were now present.  
o Ms. Henson motioned to approve the Planning Commission meeting minutes from April 4th, 

2019. 
o Mr. Dale seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS 
• Mr. Brajkovic addressed the commission in regards to the Downtown Design Standards. He stated 

that our planning staff reviewed those and found them to be guidelines more that standards and 
could not be used as an enforcement tool. The guidelines themselves are also approximately 20 
years old.  

• Ms. Gee asked if there was a way for some of the guidelines to become enforceable. 
• Mr. Brewster stated that we would be able to enforce the guidelines, but that staff would need to 

provide direction. 
• Ms. Gee stated that she was concerned about mirrored glass windows being a safety hazard 

downtown.  
• Mr. Brewster informed that with a specific issue, we would be able to obtain a quicker solution. In 

this case, Planning Commission and City Council would need to pass an ordinance restricting the 
use of mirrored glass.  

• Mr. Harris stated that our guidelines were written during a changing time in Tonganoxie and he 
feels that those guidelines should be revisited. 



 

Minutes - Page 3 of 3 

 

• Mr. Brajkovic addressed that our Fire Department and Police Department are conducting 
inspections on local businesses. During these inspections they are able to assess and potential 
safety hazards and present those to the business owners.  

• Ms. Gee complimented the work of our Fire Department and Police Department. 
 

5. GENERAL INFORMATION 
• No items. 

 
6.  ADJOURN 
o Mr. Dale made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
o Mr. Harris seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 
o Meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Melanie Tweedy, Planning Clerk  

 



 

 1405 Wakarusa Drive    Lawrence, Kansas 66049 
T: 785.749.4474    Web: www.bgcons.com 

MEMO 
 
To: George Brajkovic, City Manager 

City of Tonganoxie 
 

   
Cc: Dan Porter, Asst. City Manager 

Kent Heskett, City Superintendent 
Joe Herring, Herring Surveying 

 

   
From: Brian Kingsley, City Engineer  
   
Date: July 23, 2019  
   
Re: Saunders Estates Subdivision 

Preliminary Plat and Final Plat 
19-1001L 

 

 
 
The following are the City Engineer and staff review comments related to Engineering issues: 
 
 
Preliminary Plat: 
 

1) Access for the lots fronting Smiley Road was to be limited to two access points providing for 
shared access onto Smiley Road.  The future Road right-of-way is the agreed upon location 
of one of the two access points. 
 

2) The preliminary plat does not contain the required content (proposed infrastructure). 
 

a. A stormwater management plan is required.  Stormwater detention, if required, should 
be identified on the plat. 

 
b. Sanitary Sewer construction plans for Phase I will be required for the sanitary sewer 

service taps to the City Main.  I am unaware of the process, but a variance may be 
able to be requested to install these sewer taps. 

 
i. If this item has been coordinated with the City Superintendent a note 

documenting the agreed upon method of installation should be added to the 
preliminary and final plat as applicable. 

 

Recommendation:  The above items need to be addressed for recommendation of approval. 
 
 
 
 



  

2 
 

1405 Wakarusa Drive    Lawrence, Kansas 66049 
T: 785.749.4474    Web: www.bgcons.com 

 

Final Plat: 
 
 
Recommendation:  The above items need to be addressed for recommendation of approval. 
 
--END 
 
 
 
For questions or comments, please contact: 
Brian Kingsley, PE 
President 
T: 785.749.4474 ext. 2105 
E: brian.kingsley@bgcons.com 

mailto:brian.kingsley@bgcons.com


1 
 

 
 

City of Tonganoxie, Kansas 
 

PLANNING STAFF REPORT 

 
Case#: 2019-004P – Preliminary & Final Plat 
 
Date of Report: July 25, 2019 
 
Applicant Name: Jack Willis, South Park Development  
 
Property Owner Name: South Park Development Company, LLC  
 
Subject Property Address: 520 Smiley Road 
 
Application:    

Zoning District:  R-R Rural District and R-SF Single Family District 
Type of Approval Desired:  Preliminary and Final Plat 
Date of Application: June, 2019 
Date of Meeting: August 1, 2019  

 
Surrounding Property – Zoning and Use:  

West:  RR-2.5 (unincorporated Leavenworth County), undeveloped wooded lot; and R-R, 
house on remnant parcel that was part of previous rezoning application 

South:   R-SF – 3 single family lots (approximately .5 acres), 2 single-family lots 
(approximately 1-2 acres), and 1 remnant lot (approximately 15 acres) 

East:  R-R and R-SF– 4 single-family lots (approximately 1 acre), 1 large remnant parcel, 
church 

North:  R-SF and R-R – 17 single-family lots (approximately 7,000 – 12,000 square feet), 4 
remnant parcels (approximately 2 to 10 acres) 

 
Staff Recommendation:   

A required stormwater management plan / engineering study has not been submitted.  Should 
the Planning Commission recommend approval, the City Engineer will need to approve the plan 
or study supporting any waivers and the plat may need to be amended prior to recording.  Any 
approval should be subject to specific conditions regarding access limitations, stormwater 
management plans, and building lines. 

 
  



2 
 

I. SUMMARY: 
 
In March, 2019 this property was subject to a proposed rezoning from R-R to R-SF.  At that time, staff 
recommended that the applicant only rezone the front portion of the property, since there was no 
intention to plat or develop the entire property.  The applicant preferred to submit a request to rezone 
the entire 19 acre parcel.  The staff report for the previous application recommended approval, subject 
to a condition that a preliminary plat and conceptual street network plan for the entire property be 
created, and that this be shown at the time of preliminary or final plat.  Staff’s rationale for this 
condition is that once the property is officially rezoned, future plats simply need to meet the City 
standards and they should then be approved.  Many different utility, street, and lot configurations are 
possible under the R-SF zoning designation that would technically meet the subdivision regulations; 
several of which would not be appropriate for this area and could negatively impact transitions, future 
planning and potential development on adjacent sites.  Therefore, it was not possible to fully 
understand the potential impacts of rezoning the remainder of the property without at least a 
conceptual street network, with block and lot layouts.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the rezoning subject to the condition of a conceptual street network for the entire property 
being submitted with the preliminary plat, and the City Council approved this action on April 1, 2019. 
 
The applicant has not submitted a conceptual street network for the entire property, and there is no 
intention to develop this property at this time.  The condition for the rezoning of the rear portions of 
this lot have not been fulfilled, and the property should remain as zoned prior to the previous 
application (R-R).  Any development of the west portions of the property should be subject to the full 
rezoning procedures and considerations at that time, including the requirement for a street network 
demonstrating capacity for utility plans, block and lot layouts and other issues impacting potential 
planning and development on this and adjacent property.   
 
The current application is a preliminary and final plat for the 4 lots that were originally intended for 
development as part of previous rezoning application.  The proposed preliminary and final plat fulfills 
the conditions of rezoning for this portion of the property. 
 

II. ANALYSIS  
 
Section 3.3 provides that the Planning Commission shall review preliminary and final plats to find 
conformance with the requirements of the subdivision regulations.  Section 4.1 and 4.2 of the 
Tonganoxie Subdivision Regulations include the following subdivision design standards – the ones in 
bold are applicable to this application and with staff comments below: 
a. Acreage subdivision (potential for re-subdivision or logical arrangement of lots of “acreage lots” 

and / or undeveloped portions.) 
b. Relation to adjoining street system. 
c. Streets in relation to railroads 
d.  Major Street classifications 
e. Minimum roadway and right-of-way width. 
f. cul-de-sac and dead end streets 
g. private streets and reserve strips. 
h.  Restriction of access. 
i.  Street grades. 
j. Intersections and geometrics. 
k. Street names 
l. Drainage. 
m. Stormwater detention plans. 
n. Blocks. 



3 
 

o. Lots. 
p. Building lines 
q. Underground wiring. 
 
The design standards require subdivisions – particularly those with large lots or remnant parcels to show 
the opportunity for re-subdivision and future streets.  The easement to the south boundary of this 
property would provide a potential for street access to the property to the west in the event of future 
development.  As indicated in the summary, in the event of future development of this area, this 
condition and design standard would need to be reconsidered for the remainder of the property at that 
time, subject to all of the applicable rezoning, preliminary and final plat procedures and criteria.  (4.01.a 
and b.) 
 
The rezoning in April, 2019 was conditioned on restricted access to Smiley Road, to be further identified 
and approved by the City Engineer at the time of platting.  The plat shows no access on Smiley Road for 
the southernmost lot.  This lot will likely get access from the easement and existing driveway.  However, 
the other 3 lots do not show specific access or access restrictions.  Per the previous rezoning conditions 
and the City Engineer comments on this application, (July 23, 2019), only two access points shall be 
allowed on Smiley Road.  Therefore, the plat will need to be amended to show specific access points 
and/or include a note showing that access is restricted to two points, which must receive City Engineer 
approval (4.01.h) 
 
A stormwater management plan and engineering study by a professionally licensed engineer is required 
by the regulations, and as noted in the City Engineer comments (July 23, 2019).  The City may waive any 
requirements based on the study demonstrating to the City Engineer’s determination that no issues will 
arise from potential development of the site.  Otherwise detention deemed necessary by that plan shall 
be included on the plat prior to signatures and recording.  (4.01.l and m.; and Article 9, Section 5. 
Storwater Detention Plan) 
 
The four lots all meet the standards of the R-SF zone and they will allow for appropriate building sites 
according to the zoning district standards.  The final plat shows the front building lines, and by default 
the side building lines (which correspond to the easements).  However it does not include the applicable 
rear building line which should be added prior to recording of the final plat.  The applicable building lines 
for the R-SF district are: 30-feet front setback; 10 feet side setback; 30-feet rear setback.  (4.01.o. and p.; 
4.02.c;  and 5-014 of the zoning ordinance) 
 
 

III. EFFECT OF DECISION 
The Planning Commission approves preliminary plats, recommends final plats to the Governing Body for 
acceptance of any dedicated easements.  Due to the routine nature of this particular application, the 
preliminary and final plat are submitted concurrently, as permitted in the subdivision regulations.  Based 
on the record and other findings, the Planning Commission may: 

1. Approve / recommend approval,  
2. Approve / recommend approval with conditions 
3. Deny / recommend denial of the plat. 

 
Subsequent to any approval of a preliminary and final plat, the applicant may record the plat with the 
county, and any development will require construction drawings and permits, reviewed by staff subject 
to all applicable city codes. 
 
 
 



4 
 

IV. RECOMMENDATION.   
Staff recommends approval preliminary plat, subject to the following conditions.  If the Planning 
Commission elects to recommend approval of the final plat, a storwater management plan / engineer 
study will need to be approved by the City Engineer and approval of the final plat should be limited to 
these same conditions. 
1. The final plat be revised prior to city signatures and recording to show restricted access on all 

lots – limited to two access points on Smiley Road, and that all access points be approved by the 
City Engineer prior to construction. 

2. A storwater management plan and engineer study be submitted for review by the City engineer 
prior to any construction on any lots, and that any necessary detention shall be noted on the 
plat prior to signatures and recording, or other similar documentation prepared by a licensed 
professional engineer and approved by the City Engineer is recorded with the plats. 

3. The final plat be revised prior to city signatures and recording to show all building lines 
applicable to the R-SF zoning on each of the lots. 

4. Sanitary sewer construction plans may be required in association with future construction 
documents or building permits, as indicated in the City Engineer comments (July 23, 2019) 

5. The remainder of the property (outside of the 4 platted lots) shall remain subject to the R-R 
zoning district standards, and any future development on this property shall require review 
according to the rezoning and platting procedures and criteria at that time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Chris Brewster 
Contract City Planner 
 
 



5 
 

 
 

Current City Zoning (property in red box now zoned RR) 
 

 
Vicinity 

 
 
 



6 
 

 
Property 

 

 
 
 

Future Land Use (Tonganoxie Comprehensive Plan 2006) 

 

















 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISIONER APPLICATIONS ARE DUE BY JULY 30TH. 

 

 APPLICATIONS THAT HAVE BEEN RECEIVED PRIOR TO THE DEADLINE WILL BE ADDED JULY 31ST 
TO THE ONLINE PACKET FOR THE AUGUST 1ST PLANNING COMMISION MEETING.  



Residential Building Permit Statistics

APRIL 2019
Single Multi- S-F M-F Total Single Multi- S-F M-F Total

 Family Family Total Units Units Units Family Family Total Units Units Units
Units^ Units% Units YTD YTD YTD Units^ Units% Units YTD YTD YTD

CASS COUNTY LEAVENWORTH COUNTY
Archie 0 0 0 0 0 0 Basehor 5 0 5 18 0 18
Belton 1 0 1 20 0 20 Lansing 0 0 0 1 0 1
Cass County 6 0 6 14 0 14 Leav. County 9 0 9 22 0 22
Cleveland 0 0 0 0 0 0 Leavenworth 2 0 2 2 0 2
Garden City 0 0 0 0 0 0 Tonganoxie 6 0 6 15 0 15
Harrisonville 2 0 2 3 0 3 22 0 22 58 0 58
Lake Winnebago 8 0 8 10 0 10
Lee's Summit 0 0 0 7 0 7 WYANDOTTE COUNTY
Peculiar 0 0 0 2 0 2 Bonner Springs 2 0 2 3 0 3
Pleasant Hill 1 0 1 1 0 1 Edwardsville 0 0 0 0 0 0
Raymore 6 0 6 26 0 26 KCK/Wyandotte Co 19 0 19 39 0 39
Village of Loch Lloyd 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 21 42 0 42

24 0 24 83 0 83
MIAMI COUNTY
Louisburg 1 0 1 4 0 4

CLAY COUNTY Miami County 6 0 6 13 0 13
Clay County 7 0 7 10 0 10 Osawatomie 0 0 0 0 0 0
Excelsior Springs 1 0 1 3 0 3 Paola 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gladstone 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spring Hill 1 0 1 2 108 110
Kansas City 35 0 35 122 0 122 8 0 8 19 108 127
Kearney 8 0 8 24 0 24
Lawson 0 0 0 0 0 0 Totals 414 0 414 1242 846 2088
Liberty 5 0 5 10 0 10
North Kansas City 0 0 0 1 240 241
Pleasant Valley 0 0 0 0 0 0
Smithville 2 0 2 8 0 8

58 0 58 178 240 418

JACKSON COUNTY
Blue Springs 10 0 10 82 0 82  Month/Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Buckner 0 0 0 0 0 0  January 188 273 287 240 274 457 463 236
Grain Valley 9 0 9 47 0 47  February 182 224 216 260 408 477 463 234
Grandview 0 0 0 0 160 160  March 270 335 362 393 542 571 549 358
Greenwood 0 0 0 0 0 0 April 277 444 439 437 523 562 564 414
Independence 6 0 6 21 0 21  May 294 337 385 395 503 504 598
Jackson County 12 0 12 26 0 26 June 268 333 364 438 578 567 569
Kansas City 6 0 6 28 0 28 July 288 409 375 399 494 512 485
Lake Lotawana 0 0 0 0 0 0 August 260 354 352 425 536 480 514
Lee's Summit 42 0 42 119 139 258  September 379 384 383 462 424 514 353
Oak Grove 2 0 2 3 0 3  October 331 369 468 459 466 583 485
Raytown 0 0 0 0 0 0  November 283 340 312 360 417 502 354
Sugar Creek 0 0 0 0 0 0  December 279 288 328 432 352 468 276

87 0 87 326 299 625
 Annual Total 3,299   4,090  4,271  4,700  5,517  6,197  5,673  1242
PLATTE COUNTY
Kansas City 18 0 18 48 0 48
Parkville 5 0 5 13 0 13
Platte City 0 0 0 0 0 0
Platte County 13 0 13 31 0 31
Riverside 0 0 0 3 0 3
Weatherby  Lake 0 0 0 0 0 0
Weston 0 0 0 0 0 0 S-F M-F Total

36 0 36 95 0 95 Units Units Units
2012 917 121 1038

JOHNSON COUNTY 2013 1276 1281 2557
De Soto 3 0 3 12 0 12 2014 1304 1159 2463
Edgerton 0 0 0 0 0 0 2015 1330 999 2329
Fairway 0 0 0 0 0 0 2016 1747 1348 3095
Gardner 8 0 8 29 0 29 2017 2067 471 2538
Johnson County 3 0 3 12 0 12 2018 2039 203 2242
Leawood 4 0 4 12 0 12 2019 1242 846 2088
Lenexa 29 0 29 61 0 61
Merriam 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mission Hills 0 0 0 0 0 0
Olathe 72 0 72 149 49 198
Overland Park 18 0 18 93 150 243
Prairie Village 7 0 7 28 0 28
Roeland Park 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shawnee 2 0 2 6 0 6
Spring Hill 12 0 12 36 0 36
Westwood 0 0 0 3 0 3

158 0 158 441 199 640

Permit information reflects the most recent data at time of publication.  In order to ensure 
accurate recording of residential building permit statistics, the HBA may revise monthly and 
year-to-date figures when updated data is made available.  Copyright 2019 Home Builders 
Assoc of Greater Kansas City. All rights reserved. 

Comparison of Single Family

(Cass, Clay, Jackson, Platte, Johnson, Leavenworth, Miami, Wyandotte Counties)

Building Units for Greater Kansas City

Comparison of Permits By Units Issued Year to Date

2012 - 2019

^The Single Family number is units and includes both attached and detached units.
%Multi-Family units are in buildings with 5 or more units. 

# Not available at time of report



Residential Building Permit Statistics

MAY 2019
Single Multi- S-F M-F Total Single Multi- S-F M-F Total

 Family Family Total Units Units Units Family Family Total Units Units Units
Units^ Units% Units YTD YTD YTD Units^ Units% Units YTD YTD YTD

CASS COUNTY LEAVENWORTH COUNTY
Archie 0 0 0 0 0 0 Basehor 2 0 2 20 0 20
Belton 1 0 1 21 0 21 Lansing 0 0 0 1 0 1
Cass County 0 0 0 14 0 14 Leavenworth County 8 0 8 30 0 30
Cleveland 0 0 0 0 0 0 Leavenworth 0 0 0 2 0 2
Garden City 0 0 0 0 0 0 Tonganoxie 4 0 4 19 0 19
Harrisonville 2 0 2 5 0 5 14 0 14 72 0 72
Lake Winnebago 2 0 2 12 0 12
Lee's Summit 4 0 4 11 0 11 WYANDOTTE COUNTY
Peculiar 0 0 0 2 0 2 Bonner Springs 1 0 1 4 0 4
Pleasant Hill 5 0 5 6 0 6 Edwardsville 0 0 0 0 0 0
Raymore 16 0 16 42 0 42 KCKS/Wyandotte Co 20 0 20 59 0 59
Village of Loch Lloyd 1 0 1 1 0 1 21 0 21 63 0 63

31 0 31 114 0 114
MIAMI COUNTY
Louisburg 3 0 3 7 0 7

CLAY COUNTY Miami County 4 0 4 17 0 17
Clay County 4 0 4 14 0 14 Osawatomie 0 0 0 0 0 0
Excelsior Springs 3 0 3 6 0 6 Paola 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gladstone 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spring Hill 1 0 1 3 108 111
Kansas City 49 0 49 171 0 171 8 0 8 27 108 135
Kearney 9 0 9 33 0 33
Lawson 0 0 0 0 0 0 Totals 391 248 639 1633 1094 2727
Liberty 4 0 4 14 0 14
North Kansas City 0 0 0 1 240 241
Pleasant Valley 0 0 0 0 0 0
Smithville 10 0 10 18 0 18

79 0 79 257 240 497

JACKSON COUNTY
Blue Springs 12 0 12 94 0 94  Month/Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Buckner 0 0 0 0 0 0  January 188 273 287 240 274 457 463 236
Grain Valley 14 0 14 61 0 61  February 182 224 216 260 408 477 463 234
Grandview 0 0 0 0 160 160  March 270 335 362 393 542 571 549 358
Greenwood 0 0 0 0 0 0 April 277 444 439 437 523 562 564 414
Independence 10 0 10 31 0 31  May 294 337 385 395 503 504 598 391
Jackson County 6 0 6 32 0 32 June 268 333 364 438 578 567 569
Kansas City 10 0 10 38 0 38 July 288 409 375 399 494 512 485
Lake Lotawana 0 0 0 0 0 0 August 260 354 352 425 536 480 514
Lee's Summit 23 0 23 142 139 281  September 379 384 383 462 424 514 353
Oak Grove 0 0 0 3 0 3  October 331 369 468 459 466 583 485
Raytown 0 0 0 0 0 0  November 283 340 312 360 417 502 354
Sugar Creek 0 0 0 0 0 0  December 279 288 328 432 352 468 276

75 0 75 401 299 700
 Annual Total 3,299  4,090  4,271  4,700  5,517  6,197  5,673  1,633  
PLATTE COUNTY
Kansas City 8 0 8 56 0 56
Parkville 2 0 2 15 0 15
Platte City 0 0 0 0 0 0
Platte County 13 0 13 44 0 44
Riverside 1 0 1 4 0 4
Weatherby  Lake 1 0 1 1 0 1
Weston 0 0 0 0 0 0 S-F M-F Total

25 0 25 120 0 120 Units Units Units
2012 1211 121 1332

JOHNSON COUNTY 2013 1613 1450 3063
De Soto 5 0 5 17 0 17 2014 1689 1604 3293
Edgerton 0 0 0 0 0 0 2015 1724 1269 2993
Fairway 0 0 0 0 0 0 2016 2250 1555 3805
Gardner 10 0 10 39 0 39 2017 2571 1049 3620
Johnson County 9 0 9 21 0 21 2018 2637 494 3131
Leawood 2 0 2 14 0 14 2019 1633 1094 2727
Lenexa 31 0 31 92 0 92
Merriam 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mission Hills 0 0 0 0 0 0
Olathe 26 0 26 175 49 224
Overland Park 21 248 269 114 398 512
Prairie Village 6 0 6 34 0 34
Roeland Park 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shawnee 17 0 17 23 0 23
Spring Hill 10 0 10 46 0 46
Westwood 1 0 1 4 0 4

138 248 386 579 447 1026

Permit information reflects the most recent data at time of publication.  In order to ensure 
accurate recording of residential building permit statistics, the HBA may revise monthly and 
year-to-date figures when updated data is made available.  Copyright 2019 Home Builders 
Assoc of Greater Kansas City. All rights reserved. 

Comparison of Single Family

(Cass, Clay, Jackson, Platte, Johnson, Leavenworth, Miami, Wyandotte Counties)

Building Units for Greater Kansas City

Comparison of Permits By Units Issued Year to Date

2012 - 2019

^The Single Family number is units and includes both attached and detached units.
%Multi-Family units are in buildings with 5 or more units. 

# Not available at time of report



Residential Building Permit Statistics

JUNE 2019
Single Multi- S-F M-F Total Single Multi- S-F M-F Total

 Family Family Total Units Units Units Family Family Total Units Units Units
Units^ Units% Units YTD YTD YTD Units^ Units% Units YTD YTD YTD

CASS COUNTY LEAVENWORTH COUNTY
Archie 0 0 0 0 0 0 Basehor 6 0 6 26 0 26
Belton 3 0 3 24 0 24 Lansing 0 0 0 1 0 1
Cass County 0 0 0 14 0 14 Leav. County 5 0 5 34 0 34
Cleveland 0 0 0 0 0 0 Leavenworth 0 0 0 2 0 2
Garden City 0 0 0 0 0 0 Tonganoxie 1 0 1 20 0 20
Harrisonville 0 0 0 5 0 5 12 0 12 83 0 83
Lake Winnebago 7 0 7 19 0 19
Lee's Summit 1 0 1 12 0 12 WYANDOTTE COUNTY
Peculiar 27 0 27 29 0 29 Bonner Springs 0 0 0 4 0 4
Pleasant Hill 4 0 4 10 0 10 Edwardsville 0 0 0 0 0 0
Raymore 19 0 19 61 0 61 KCK/Wyandotte Co 4 0 4 63 0 63
Village of Loch Lloyd 3 0 3 4 0 4 4 0 4 67 0 67

64 0 64 178 0 178
MIAMI COUNTY
Louisburg 8 0 8 15 0 15

CLAY COUNTY Miami County 0 0 0 17 0 17
Clay County 0 0 0 14 0 14 Osawatomie 0 0 0 0 0 0
Excelsior Springs 1 0 1 7 0 7 Paola 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gladstone 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spring Hill# 0 0 0 3 108 111
Kansas City 38 0 38 209 0 209 8 0 8 35 108 143
Kearney 1 0 1 33 0 33
Lawson 0 0 0 0 0 0 Totals 387 0 387 2013 1094 3107
Liberty 0 0 0 14 0 14
North Kansas City 4 0 4 5 240 245
Pleasant Valley 0 0 0 0 0 0
Smithville 4 0 4 22 0 22

48 0 48 304 240 544

JACKSON COUNTY
Blue Springs 23 0 23 116 0 116  Month/Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Buckner 0 0 0 0 0 0  January 188 273 287 240 274 457 463 234
Grain Valley 10 0 10 71 0 71  February 182 224 216 260 408 477 463 234
Grandview 0 0 0 0 160 160  March 270 335 362 393 542 571 549 357
Greenwood 0 0 0 0 0 0 April 277 444 439 437 523 562 564 410
Independence 15 0 15 46 0 46  May 294 337 385 395 503 504 598 391
Jackson County 6 0 6 38 0 38 June 268 333 364 438 578 567 569 387
Kansas City 3 0 3 41 0 41 July 288 409 375 399 494 512 485
Lake Lotawana 0 0 0 0 0 0 August 260 354 352 425 536 480 514
Lee's Summit 42 0 42 183 139 322  September 379 384 383 462 424 514 353
Oak Grove 0 0 0 3 0 3  October 331 369 468 459 466 583 485
Raytown 0 0 0 0 0 0  November 283 340 312 360 417 502 354
Sugar Creek 0 0 0 0 0 0  December 279 288 328 432 352 468 276

99 0 99 498 299 797
 Annual Total 3,299  4,090   4,271  4,700  5,517  6,197  5,673  2,013   
PLATTE COUNTY
Kansas City 15 0 15 70 0 70
Parkville 0 0 0 15 0 15
Platte City 0 0 0 0 0 0
Platte County 10 0 10 54 0 54
Riverside 1 0 1 5 0 5
Weatherby Lake 2 0 2 3 0 3
Weston 0 0 0 0 0 0 S-F M-F Total

28 0 28 147 0 147 Units Units Units
2012 1479 517 1996

JOHNSON COUNTY 2013 1946 1702 3648
De Soto 6 0 6 23 0 23 2014 2053 1977 4030
Edgerton 0 0 0 0 0 0 2015 2163 1389 3552
Fairway 0 0 0 0 0 0 2016 2828 1897 4725
Gardner 34 0 34 72 0 72 2017 3138 1090 4228
Johnson County 2 0 2 23 0 23 2018 3206 1033 4239
Leawood 2 0 2 16 0 16 2019 2013 1094 3107
Lenexa 16 0 16 108 0 108
Merriam 1 0 1 1 0 1
Mission Hills 0 0 0 0 0 0
Olathe 33 0 33 208 49 257
Overland Park 21 0 21 135 398 533
Prairie Village 2 0 2 36 0 36
Roeland Park 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shawnee 6 0 6 29 0 29
Spring Hill# 0 0 0 45 0 45
Westwood 1 0 1 5 0 5

124 0 124 701 447 1148

Permit information reflects the most recent data at time of publication.  In order to ensure 
accurate recording of residential building permit statistics, the HBA may revise monthly and 
year-to-date figures when updated data is made available.  Copyright 2019 Home Builders 
Assoc of Greater Kansas City. All rights reserved. 

Comparison of Single Family

(Cass, Clay, Jackson, Platte, Johnson, Leavenworth, Miami, Wyandotte Counties)

Building Units for Greater Kansas City

Comparison of Permits By Units Issued Year to Date

2012 - 2019

^The Single Family number is units and includes both attached and detached units.
%Multi-Family units are in buildings with 5 or more units. 

# Not available at time of report


	8-1-19 -Agenda
	Agenda

	2019-05-02_Draft Minutes_v1
	Call to Order

	2019-07-23 Saunders Estates Review - Prelim and Final Plat
	190801_520SmileyRoadFinalPlat
	K-18-1254 Willis SAUNDERS FINAL Rev 6-26-19
	K-18-1254 Willis SAUNDERS PRELIM REV 6-26-19
	Prelim & Final Plat Application
	PLANNING COMMISIONER APPLICATIOS
	Residential Statistics 04-2019
	Residential Permit Statistics 05-2019
	Residential Statistics 06-2019

